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LAMASERY OF HABMONY AND PEACE

Yonghegong is located inside Andingmen in the northeastern part of Beijing.Built in 1694,
the 33rd year of the reign of Emperor Kangxi, it was at first the mansion of Yinzhen, the emperor’s
fourth son, who later succeeded to the throne and became Emperor Yongzheng. In 1725, the
third year of Emperor Yongzheng, the mansion became the emperor’s secondary palace and
was renamed the Palace of Harmony and Peace. In 1744, the ninth year of Emperor Qianlong’s
reign, the palace was converted into a lamaist temple, which also served as the administrative
centre of Buddhist affairs of the Qing government.

The Mongolian and Tibetan peoples have been two important ethnic minorities since histori-
cal times. For the stability of the regime and peace at the borders, it was necessary for the Qing
court to exercise control over them by every means. As most of the Mongolians and Tibetans
were believers in the lamaist form of Buddhism, Emperor Qianlong encouraged the spread of
the Yellow Sect of Lamaism in the interior and led the imperial family in following the creed so
as the maintain a close link with the areas inhabited by the Mongolians and Tibetans. As he
also made frequent contact with the leading lamas, such as Dalai and Panchen, and leading
Mongolian monks, he was supported by their followers in keeping the country and people in
peace and security. It was against this background that Yonghegong was converted into a
lamaist temple.

The grounds of Yonghegong measure nearly 400 metres from north to south and 50-80
metres from east to west. There are altogether 1134 rooms in the temple buildings, fotalling
23131.8 square metres in floor space. The principal structures in Yonghegong include three




monumental arches, the Gate of Harmony and Peace (Yonghemen), Hall of Harmony and
Peace (Yonghedian), Hall of Eternal Blessings (Yongyoudian), Hall of the Wheel of Dharma
(Falundian) and Hall of Infinite Happiness (Wanfuge), which stand in five courtyards, one be-
hind another. There are also the auxiliary side halls, the four halls of learning (Scripture-Lectur-
ing Hall, Esoteric Hall, Mathematics Hall and Bhaisajya Hall), the Initiation Terrace and Panchen’s
Tower. The courtyards are progressively reduced in size from the south to the north while the
buildings rise progressively higher, giving people an enigmatic impression, the impression of a
place “where dragons and phoenixes gather.” Since the predecessor of Yonghegong was the
mansion of a prince and the emperor’s secondary palace, the structures bear the architectural
characteristics of palace structures and Tibetan temple buildings. This is most prominent in the
Hall of the Wheel of the Dharma and the Hall of Infinite Happiness. The Hall of the Wheel of the
Dharma is the great central hall where the lamas gather to perform Buddhist rituals. The Hall of
Infinite Happiness enshrines the Great Buddha Maitreya .All of the names of the Yonghegong
buildings and inscriptions on the stone stelae in the lamasery are in four languages: Han,
Manchu, Mongolian and Tibetan. This not only is in harmony with the architectural style, but
also shows how much thought Emperor Qianlong had given to maintaining the unity and unifi-
cation of the multi-national country.

Preserved in Yonghegong is a rich collection of cultural relics, particularly those related to
Tibetan Buddhism. In addition to the large number of vividly sculptured Buddhist statues, each
different in posture and expression, there are also a large collection of Tibetan-style paintings
known as Tangka paintings, murals, scriptures and religious instruments and vessels. The
inscriptions on the stelae and boards, the paintings and calligraphic works, decorations and
ornaments in the lamasery are also of very high cultural and histarical value. The Hill of 500
Arhats carved in red sandalwood, the Buddha’s shrine carved in golden-striped Nanmu hard-
wood and the giant Buddha carved in white sandalwood are known as the three masterpieces
of wood carving in Yonghegong. In 1750, after the revolt staged by the Tibetan local chieftain
Jurmod was put down by an army of the Qing government sent by Emperor Qianlong, the
military and administrative powers in Tibet were placed in the hands of the seventh Dalai
Lama. To repay the emperor’s favour, the seventh Daiai Lama obtained a white sandalwood




tree trunk for the emperor from Nepal through exchange with a large quantity of gems. When
the log was shipped to Yonghegong, Emperor Qianlong appointed Living Buddha Charhan to
oversee the designing and carving of it into a statue of the Buddha.The Hall of Infinite Happiness,
in which the giant Buddha is enshrined, was built after the giant Buddha was completed. This
gave rise to the saying: The giant Buddha came before Yonghegong. The Buddhist shrine and
sandalwood Buddha are in the Hall of Buddha's Light. Empress Dowager Niugulu was said
have a gold crown of 70-percent purity weighing more than 10 kilogrammes made for the
statue and a large and rare luminous pear! inlaid on the forehead of the statue.lt is to be
regretted that both were lost in the early half of this century.

During the most flourishing period in history, the temple was staffed by more than 500
lamas. There are nearly 90 of them today and most of them are from Inner Mongolia and Fuxin
in the Northeast.Kabuyang Tubudan, the present abbot of Yonghegong, is a lama of profound
learning and a holder of the Gexi academic degree. He not only has a thorough knowledge
about the Mongolian and Tibetan scriptures, but also is well versed in Sanskrit.In recent years,
he has collaborated with others in translating and publishing several monumental works, in-
cluding the translation of the Great Compendium of Sutras from Tibetan into Mongolian and
the Mongolian edition of the Four-Volume Medical Classic. Luosang Samadan is the most
favorite disciple of Tubudan.Entering the temple at 15, he is now the vice-abbot.In addition to
his heavy work load, he is at present compiling a scriptural textbook for the tamas to recite
every day.

Monks in Yonghegong observe the regulations and disciplines of the Yellow Sect of Ti-
betan Buddhism, a statue of the Great Master Zongkaba, founder of the Geru Sect, is en-
shrined in the Hall of the Wheel of the Dharma, where the monks in cassocks perform rituals
and chant scriptures every morning. During religious festivals and on memorial days, Buddhist
activities and prayer sessions are held in the temple. In their scriptural study courses, the
lamas in the temple closely observe the order that the scriptures of the Prakaranna Sect are
studied before those of the Esoteric Sect.

The Buddhist religious affairs in Yonghegong are supervised by the Temple Administrative
Committee formed by lamas and with the posts of abbot and supervisors on the committee. In




the Qing Dynasty, the abbot and vice-abbot were appointed by the court, and the masters of
the various halls and other temple officials, selected and appointed by the Dalai and Panchen
lamas. The first abbot of Yonghegong was Living Buddha Changja Robidoji the Third, who
concurrently held of post of chief of the Printing Department of the Lamas in the capital. The
post was later filled by Mongolian lamas in most cases.

In the early 1990s, the wooden statue of Maitreya Buddha in the Hall of Infinite Happiness
was repaired and gilded for the first time in more than 240 years after its completion. Upon
completion in 1993, a hallowing ceremony was held in the temple. The ceremony lasted three
days and was unprecedented and the largest in scale in the history of Yonghegong. There was
also a incinerating ceremony. Buddhist rules require it that before a statue is to be repaired,
the Buddha it represents must be sent away by chanting scriptures to reduce the statue into an
unholy piece of wood so that the Buddha will not be offended by any work done to the statue.
After the repair is done, the Buddha is invited back or hallowed.After the hallowing, the statue
is only to be worshipped.Any improper act towards it will be a crime.

The Devil-Catching Ceremony is held in Yonghegong every year between the 29th day of
the first lunar month and the first day of the second lunar month. The Devil-Catching Dance, a
Buddhist religious dance, is performed during the ceremony by lamas masquerading as devils
and ghosts and wearing masks. The Devil in the Devil-Catching Dance refers to the evil King
Langdarma, who tried to destroy Buddhism in Tibetan history. The Devil-Catching Dance is the
most characteristic religious dance to be performed in Yonghegong.The arena is set up in the
courtyard of the Devaraja Hall (Gate of Harmony and Peace). The Devil-Catching Dance Cer-
emony lasts three days. The climax is reached on the afternoon of the second day. In the Qing
Dynasty, the ceremony was attended by the emperor, princes and senior court officials. The

traditional Devil-Catching Ceremony in Yonghegong was suspended for a time after 1957 and
did not resume until 1988.
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Yonghegong is composed of
seven courtyards arrange
along a single axis. The court—
vards are progressively re—
duced in size one after an-
other from south to north
while the structures rise pro-
gressively higher. giving one
the impression of infinite
height and depth and exem-—
plifying the traditional Chi—
nese stvle ol architecture.
which cmphasizes  “opening
the gates to tle sun and con-
cea.ing the rows of buildings
hehind them™.
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There are three monumental arches in Yonghegong. standing on
the east. west and north sides of the first courtvard. Built in 1744,
the ninth vear of Emperor Qianlong. the original structures with
columns and beams were regrettably stolen during the Japanese
war of aggression against China and replaced with concrete ones
as we see them todav.
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Above Right: A carved design of auspicious dragon and phocnix
and sets of brackets on one of the moaumental arches.
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The Gate of Lumireus Peace (Zhaotaimen). tlie entrance 1o
the second courtyard, is a structure of three gateways. As the
walls and roofs are decorated with yellow and green glazed
bricks and tiles, the gate is also called the Glazed Gate.
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Ori the side wall of the gate structure
is a design carved in relief of two
dragons sporlinig pearls with the ctiar—
acter for “longevity™ between them.
which symbolizes blessing and a long
life.
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Behind the Gate of Luminous Peace are the Bell and Drum Towers
standing on the castern arxl western sides of the courtyard. First buill in
1744, the ninth vear of Emperor Qianlong's reign. in the architeciural stvle
of multiple caves and hipped—gable rofs. the two towers are decorated
wilh golden and painted desgms. Picture shows an outside view of the Rell
Tower.
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The Imperial Stele Pavilion. The essay. "On Lamas”, written by >
Emperor Qianlong, is carved on the four sides of the stele i11 the
pavilion in the Han, Manchu., Mongolian and Tibetan languages. The
Han-language version is in the hand of Emperor Qianlong himself.
The stele has become an important object for the study of the ethnic
and. religious pelicies of the Qing dynasty.
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The name of the Hall of Harmony and Peace on the board is in the
handwriting of Emperor Qianlong in the Han. Manchu. Mangolian
and Tibetan languages.
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The Gate of Harmony and
Peace is elernally enshrouded
in the smoke of burning
incense. Originally the front
entrance to the Mansion of
Prince Yong. il was renanied
the Devaraja Hall for the four
heavenly Kings enshrined
there after the mansion was
converted into a lamasery.
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